

Flood Control Act of 1944, the Administrator has determined that the proposed Integrated System Rate Schedules are consistent with applicable law and the lowest possible rates consistent with sound business principles.

Environment

No additional evaluation of the environmental impact of the proposed rate schedule changes was conducted since no change has been made to the currently-approved Integrated System rates which were determined to fall within the class of actions that are categorically excluded from the requirements of preparing either an Environmental Impact Statement or an Environmental Assessment pursuant to the procedural provisions of the National Environmental Policy Act, 10 CFR 1021.

Order

In view of the foregoing and under the authority vested in me as the Secretary of Energy, I hereby confirm, approve and place in effect on an interim basis, effective April 1, 2001, the Southwestern Integrated System Rate Schedules P-98D and NPTS-98D, which shall remain in effect on an interim basis through September 30, 2001, or until the FERC confirms and approves the rates on a final basis.

Dated: April 3, 2001.

Spencer Abraham,
Secretary.

[FR Doc. 01-8900 Filed 4-10-01; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6450-01-P

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

[EB Docket No. 01-61; FCC 01-74]

Amateur Radio Station and General Class Operator License KC4HAZ and General Mobile Radio Service Station KAE1170

AGENCY: Federal Communications Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: This document by the Commission has taken the following actions: ordered a hearing to determine whether the station licenses held by Leslie D. Brewer for Amateur Radio Station and General Class Operator License KC4HAZ and General Mobile Radio Service Station KAE1170, Tampa, Florida, should be revoked; suspended Leslie D. Brewer's Amateur radio operator's license; and issued a notice of apparent liability for a forfeiture in the

amount of \$11,000 for Leslie D. Brewer's apparent willful and/or repeated operation of unlicensed FM radio facilities in Tampa, Florida. The Commission has determined that serious questions exist as to whether Leslie D. Brewer has willfully and repeatedly violated the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, and the Commission's rules, and the effect thereof on his basic qualifications to be and remain a Commission licensee.

ADDRESSES: Federal Communications Commission, Enforcement Bureau, 445 12th Street, SW., Washington, DC. 20554.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Roy Boyce or Dana Leavitt, Enforcement Bureau, Investigations and Hearings Division (202) 418-1420.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This is a summary of an Order to Show Cause, Notice of Order of Suspension, Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, and Notice of Apparent Liability for a Forfeiture ("Order") in EB Docket No. 01-61, adopted by the Commission on February 22, 2001, and released on March 5, 2001. The complete text of this Order is available for inspection and copying during normal business hours in the FCC Reference Information Center, Courtyard Level, 445 12th Street, SW., Washington, DC, and also may be purchased from the Commission's copy contractor, International Transcription Services, Inc., at 202-857-3800, CY-B400, 445 12th Street, SW., Washington, DC.

Summary of Order To Show Cause, Notice of Order of Suspension, Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, and Notice of Apparent Liability for a Forfeiture

1. The Commission has commenced a hearing proceeding to determine whether Leslie D. Brewer ("Brewer"), licensee of Amateur radio station and General Class Operator License KC4HAZ and General Mobile Radio Station KAE1170, Tampa, Florida, is qualified to be or remain a Commission licensee. The record before the Commission indicates that Brewer has apparently willfully and/or repeatedly engaged in unlawful Commission-related activities, including the operation of unlicensed (i.e., "pirate") FM radio broadcast facilities in the Tampa, Florida area and the marketing of unauthorized FM broadcast transmitting equipment. Pursuant to sections 312(a)(2), 312(a)(4), and 312(c) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended ("the Act"), Leslie D. Brewer is ordered to show cause why the station licenses for Stations KC4HAZ and KAE1170 should not be revoked, at

a hearing proceeding before an Administrative Law Judge at a time and place to be specified in a subsequent Order, upon the following issues:

(a) To determine whether Leslie D. Brewer willfully and/or repeatedly violated section 301 of the Act by operating unlicensed broadcast facilities in 1996, 1997, 1999, and/or 2000, and, if so, the effect thereof on his basic qualifications to be and remain a Commission licensee.

(b) To determine whether Leslie D. Brewer willfully and/or repeatedly violated section 301 of the Act by operating an unlicensed Studio-to-Transmitter Link in 1999 and/or 2000, and, if so, the effect thereof on his basic qualifications to be and remain a Commission licensee.

(c) To determine whether Leslie D. Brewer willfully and/or repeatedly violated §§ 2.803(a)(1) and/or 15.201(b) of the Commission's rules by marketing and/or selling an unauthorized radio frequency device or devices and, if so, the effect thereof on his basic qualifications to be and remain a Commission licensee.

(d) To determine, in light of the evidence adduced pursuant to the foregoing issues, whether Leslie D. Brewer is qualified to be and remain a Commission licensee.

(e) To determine, in light of the evidence adduced pursuant to the foregoing issues, whether the licenses for KC4HAZ and KAE1170 should be revoked.

2. The Commission also ordered that it be determined, pursuant to section 503, whether an Order of Forfeiture in an amount not to exceed \$11,000 should be issued against Leslie D. Brewer for willfully and/or repeatedly violating section 301 of the Act on March 11, 2000.

3. Furthermore, the Commission ordered that, pursuant to section 303(m)(1)(A) of the Act and § 1.85 of the Commission's rules, Leslie D. Brewer's Amateur radio operator license is suspended for the duration of its term. The suspension shall take effect 15 calendar days after receipt by Brewer of the Order, unless, within such time, Brewer requests in writing a hearing on the matter of the suspension, in which instance, the suspension of operator license KC4HAZ shall be held in abeyance pending conclusion of the hearing. If Leslie D. Brewer timely requests in writing a hearing on the matter of suspension of his Amateur radio operator license, such hearing will be held in a consolidated proceeding to determine the issues in 1(a) through (d) above, and to determine whether Amateur radio operator license

KC4HAZ should be suspended for the remainder of its term.

4. The Commission ordered that, to avail himself of the opportunity to be heard and the right to present evidence at a hearing in these proceedings, Leslie D. Brewer, in person or by his attorney, shall file within 15 calendar days after receipt of the Order to Show Cause and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, a written appearance stating that he will appear at the hearing and present evidence on matters specified in the Order. If Brewer fails to file a timely written notice of appearance, his right to a hearing on the matter of his Amateur radio station and GMRS licenses shall be deemed to be waived and the proceeding thereafter shall be conducted in accordance with § 1.92 of the Commission's rules

Federal Communications Commission.

Magalie Roman Salas,
Secretary.

[FR Doc. 01-8844 Filed 4-10-01; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6712-01-U

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

[CC Docket No. 92-237; DA 01-885]

Next Meeting of the North American Numbering Council

AGENCY: Federal Communications Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: On April 6, 2001, the Commission released a public notice announcing the April 17 and 18, 2001, meeting and agenda of the North American Numbering Council (NANC). The intended effect of this action is to make the public aware of the NANC's next meeting and its agenda.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Deborah Blue, Special Assistant to the Designated Federal Officer (DFO) at (202) 418-2320 or dblue@fcc.gov. The address is: Network Services Division, Common Carrier Bureau, Federal Communications Commission, The Portals, 445 12th Street, SW., Suite 6A207, Washington, DC 20554. The fax number is: (202) 418-2345. The TTY number is: (202) 418-0484.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Released: April 6, 2001.

The North American Numbering Council (NANC) has scheduled a meeting to be held Tuesday, April 17, 2001, from 8:30 a.m. until 5:00 p.m., and on Wednesday, April 18, 2001, from 8:30 a.m., until 12 noon. The meeting will be held at the Federal Communications Commission, Portals

II, 445 12th Street, SW., Room TW-C305, Washington, DC.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This meeting is open to members of the general public. The FCC will attempt to accommodate as many participants as possible. The public may submit written statements to the NANC, which must be received two business days before the meeting. In addition, oral statements at the meeting by parties or entities not represented on the NANC will be permitted to the extent time permits. Such statements will be limited to five minutes in length by any one party or entity, and requests to make an oral statement must be received two business days before the meeting. Requests to make an oral statement or provide written comments to the NANC should be sent to Deborah Blue at the address under **FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT**, stated above.

Proposed Agenda

1. Approval of the February 20-21, 2001 and March 20-21, 2001 meeting minutes
2. North American Numbering Plan Administrator (NANPA) Report
3. Report of NANPA Oversight Working Group
 - NANPA Performance Issues
 - NANPA Technical Requirements status
 - 2000 NANPA Performance Results
4. Report of Numbering Resource Optimization (NRO) Working Group
 - Continuing Review of NANP-Exhaust
 - State Pooling Trials
5. Industry Numbering Committee Report
 - Imminent Exhaust Update
6. Report of NANP Expansion/Optimization IMG
7. Report of the Local Number Portability Administration (LNPA) Working Group
 - Wireless Number Portability Subcommittee
8. Report of Cost Recovery Working Group
 - Finalize NBANC B&C Technical Requirements
9. Report from NBANC
10. Steering Group Meeting
 - Table of NANC Projects
11. Steering Group Report
12. Reseller CIC IMG Report
13. Oversight of LLCs NPAC
14. Action Items
15. Public participation (5 minutes each, if any)
16. Other Business

Federal Communications Commission.

Diane Griffin Harmon,

Acting Chief, Network Services Division,
Common Carrier Bureau.

[FR Doc. 01-9038 Filed 4-10-01; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6712-01-P

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

[DA 01-688]

Expansion of Paging Contours Over Water on a Secondary Basis

AGENCY: Federal Communications Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: In this document, the Federal Communications Commission ("the Commission") seeks comment on a Request for Rule Change filed by the Paging and Messaging Alliance of the Personal Communications Industry Association ("PCIA") to treat certain modifications to paging stations as minor modifications. Further, the Commission conditionally waives its rules governing the classification of filings as major or minor, in order to determine whether prior expansions of paging composite interference contours ("CICs") over water that licensees carried out on a permissive basis are in compliance with the rules, and to clear up any uncertainty about what procedures should apply to similar future expansions.

DATES: Submit comments on or before April 16, 2001, and reply comments not later than May 1, 2001.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Leon Jackler, Policy and Rules Branch, Commercial Wireless Division, Wireless Telecommunications Bureau, at (202) 418-0946.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This Public Notice ("Notice") in DA 01-688, released on March 15, 2001 is available for inspection and copying during normal business hours in the FCC Reference Center, 445 Twelfth Street, SW., Washington, DC. The complete text may be purchased from the Commission's copy contractor, International Transcription Service, Inc. 1231 20th Street, NW., Washington, DC 20036, (202) 857-3800. The document is also available via the Internet at http://www.fcc.gov/Bureaus/Wireless/Public_Notices/2001/index.3html under filenames da010688.doc or da010688.txt.

ADDRESSES: Comments may be filed via the Commission's Electronic Comment Filing System (ECFS) via the Internet to <http://www.fcc.gov/e-file/ecfs.html>. In